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Frank Edelblut Christine Brennan
Commissioner Deputy Commissioner

STATE OP NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

25 Hall Street

Concord, N.H. 03301

TEL (603) 271-3495
FAX (603) 271-1953

May 8, 2024

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, New Hampshire 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

1. Authorize the New Hampshire Department of Education, to hold two organized meetings,
each three days long, on a date to be determined at a location to be determined for a total
meeting cost not to exceed $48,000.00 for the purpose of hosting trainings entitled; Connect
Suicide Prevention training program and the Connect Suicide Prevention Train the Trainer
program effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 29,
2024. 100% Federal Funds.

2. Contingent upon approval of Requested Action # 1, authorize the New Hampshire
Department of Education, Bureau of Student Wellness, Office of Social & Emotional
Wellness to enter into a sole source contract with NAMI New Hampshire, (VC 166630)
Concord, NH in the amount of $48,000.00 to provide the Connect Suicide Prevention
training program and the Connect Suicide Prevention Train the Trainer program effective
upon Governor and Executive Council approval through September 29, 2024. 100% Federal
funds.

Funds are available in the following account in Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025 with the authority to
adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between Fiscal Years
through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

TDD Access: Relay NH 711
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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council
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Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Total Amount

2024 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services 51,200.00

2025 102-500731 . Contracts for Program Services $46,800.00

Total $48,000.00

EXPLANATION

The Department is requesting a sole source contract with NAMI (National Alliance on Mental
Illness) New Hampshire as this vendor is the only provider of the Connect Suicide
Prevention/Intervention Training, a designated national best practice. This is a comprehensive
training model which promotes an integrated community response to suicide prevention.

NAMI New Hampshire is uniquely equipped to provide these trainings. As a local non-profit,
they developed and now currently operate these trainings which have been recognized as a
comprehensive model for planning and implementing suicide prevention in the Action Alliance
for Suicide Prevention's 2017 paper, "Key Elements for the Implementation of Comprehensive
Community-Based Suicide Prevention."

The New Hampshire Department of Education (NHED) in collaboration with NAMI New
Hampshire will advertise this opportunity publicly on their social media, email lists, and
newsletters. Individuals will be selected on a first come, first served basis through an application
process managed by New Hampshire Department of Education. These funds will support the
below activities.

•  Connect Suicide Prevention Training - This training includes how to identify suicide
warning signs and focuses on how to work across systems to build a safety net for
individuals at risk. A total of 60 participants will be trained.

•  Connect Suicide Prevention/Intervention Train-the-Trainer (ToT) - is a Nationally
Designated Best Practice Program, which builds capacity and sustainability for a
community to provide ongoing training in suicide prevention and postvention, generates
suicide prevention champions who will possess increased understanding to address these
issues in a comprehensive manner in their communities. A total of 32 participants will be
trained.

Respectfully submitted,

Frank Edelblut

Commissioner of Education
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Attachment A

Cost Breakout

Connect Suicide Prevention Training $48,000

Advertising, Social-Media, Web Site Postings, Venue (TED) $0

Registration Managed by NHED Staff $0

Food - Not provided $0

Draft Agenda

Connect Suicide Prevention training program

This training includes how to identify suicide warning signs and focuses on how to work across
systems to build a safety net for individuals at risk. A total of 60 participants will be trained.

9:00 Welcome - Ice Breaker

9:30 Topic 1
11:15 Break

11:30 Topic 2
12:30 Lunch (Will not be provided)
1:00 Topic 3
2:15 Break .

2:30 Topic 4
3:30 Closing Remarks - Certificates

Connect Suicide Prevention Train the Trainer program

Is a Nationally Designated Best Practice Program, which builds capacity and sustainability for a
community to provide ongoing training in suicide prevention and postvbntion, generates suicide
prevention champions who will possess increased understanding to address these issues in a
comprehensive manner in their communities. A total of 32 participants will be trairied.

9:00 Day 1 - Welcome - Ice Breaker
9:30 Topic 1
11:15 Break

11:30 Topic 2
12:30 Lunch (Will not be provided)
1:00 Topic 3
2:15- Break

2:30 Topic 4
3:30 Closing Remarks

9:00 Day 2 - Welcome - Ice Breaker
9:30 Topic 1
11:15 Break

11:30 Topic 2
12:30 Lunch (Will not be provided)
1:00 Topic 3
2:15 Break

2:30 ■ Topic 4
3:30 Closing Remarks - Certificates



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 2/23/2023)

Notice: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any, information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

1.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually
agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

IDENTIFICATION.

1.1 State Agency Name

New Hampshire Department of Education
(NHED)

1.2 State Agency Address

25 Hall Street

Concord, NH 03301

1.3 Contractor Name

NAMI New Hampshire

1.4 Contractor Address

85 N State^Street
Concord NH 03301

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

603-225-5359

. 1.6 Account Unit and

Class

See Exhibit C

1.7 Completion Date .

09/29/2024

1.8 Price Limitation

$48,000.00

1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency
Molly'White

1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
603-931-2831

1.11 Contractor Signature

Date: 0AI2AI202A

1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

*

Susan Steams, Executive Director

1.13 State Agency. Sigi^ure

QJl Date:
1.14 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

Frank Edelblut, Commissioner of Education

1.15 Approval by the N.H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (ifapplicable)

By: Director, On:

1.16 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (ifapplicable)

'
By: EliziKeth Brown, Attomey On: 5/15/2024

. 1.17 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

G&C Item number: G&C Meeting Date:
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2. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The Slate of New

Hampshire, acting through the agency identified in block 1.1
("State"), engages contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor")
to perform, and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of
goods, or both, identified and more particularly described in the
attached EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.

3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and Executive
Council of the State of New Hampshire, if applicable, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
become effective on the date the Governor and Executive Council

approve this Agreement, unless no such approval is required, in
which case the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block 1.13
("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the Effective
Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior to the
Effective Date shall be perfomied at the sole risk of the Contractor,
and in the event that this Agreement does not become effective, the
State shall have no liability to the Contractor, including without
limitation, any obligation to pay the Contractor for any costs
incurred or Services performed.
3.3 Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notvs'ithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary,
all obligations of the State hereunder, including, without limitation,
the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon the
availability and continued appropriation of funds. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such
available appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction or
termination of appropriated funds by any state or federal legislative
or executive action that reduces, eliminates or other\vise modifies
the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and
the Scope for Services provided in EXHIBIT B, in whole or in part,
the State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds
become available, if ever, and shall have the right to reduce or
terminate the Services under this Agreement immediately upon
giving the' Contractor notice of such reduction or termination. The
State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
or source to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds

in that Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/ PAYMENT-
5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of payment
are identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C which
is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in no
event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually made
hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block 1.8. The
payment by the State of the contract price shall be the only and the
complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all expenses, of
whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the performance

hereof, and shall be the only and the complete compensation to the
Contractor for the Services.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement those
liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H, RSA 80:7
through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 The State's liability under this Agreement shall be limited to
monetary damages not to exceed the total fees paid. The Contractor
agrees that it has an adequate remedy at law for any breach of this
Agreement by the State and hereby waives any right to specific
performance or other equitable remedies against the State.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS/EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 in connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable statutes, laws,
regulations, and orders of federal, state, county or municipal
authorities which impose any obligation or duty upon the
Contractor, including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal
employment opportunity laws and the Governor's order on Respect
and Civility in the V/orkplace, Executive order 2020-01. In
addition, if this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all federal
executive orders, rules, regulations and statutes, and with any rules,
regulations and guidelines as the State or the United Slates issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor shall also comply
with all applicable intellectual property laws..
6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall not
discriminate against employees or applicants for employment
because of age, sex, sexual orientation, race, color, marital status,
physical or mental disability, religious creed, national origin,
gender identity, or gender expression, and will take affirmative
action to prevent such discrimination, unless exempt by state or
federal law. The Contractor shall ensure any subcontractors comply
with these nondiscrimination requirements.
6.3 No payments or transfers of value by Contractor or its
representatives in connection with this Agreement have or shall be
made which have the purpose or effect of public or commercial
bribery, or acceptance of or acquiescence in extortion, kickbacks,
or other unlawful or improper means of obtaining business.
6.4. The Contractor agrees to permit the State or United States
access to any of the Contractor's books, records and accounts for
the purpose of ascertaining compliance with this Agreement and all
rules, regulations and orders pertaining to the covenants, terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all personnel
necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor warrants that all
personnel engaged in the Services shall be qualified to perform the
Services, and shall be properly licensed and otherwise authorized
to do so under all applicable laws.
7.2 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or any
successor, shall be the State's point of contact pertaining to this
Agreement.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of ihe following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder ("Event of
Default"):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition of
this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may
take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a
greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30) calendar days
from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not timely

cured, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) calendar days
after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price which
would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the period from
the date of such notice until such time as the State determines that

the Contractor has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid
to the Contractor;

8.2.3 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default and set off against any other obligations the State may owe
to the Contfactor.any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event of
Default," treat the Agreement as breached, terminate the Agreement
and pursue any of its remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. TERMINATION.

9.1 Notwithstanding paragraph 8, the Stale may, at its sole
discretion, terminate the Agreement for any reason, in whole or in
pan, by thirty (30) calendar days written notice to the Contractor
that the State is exercising its option to terminate the Agreement.
9.2 In the event of an early termination of this Agreement for any
reason other than the completion of the Services, the Contractor
shall, at the State's discretion, deliver to the Contracting Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) calendar days afler the date of
termination, a report ("Termination Report") describing in tietail
ail Services performed, and the contract price earned, to and
including the date of termination. In addition, at the State's
discretion, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days
of notice of early termination, develop and submit to the State a
transition plan for Services under the Agreement.

10. PROPERTY OWNERSHIP/DISCLOSURE.

10.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "Property" shall mean
all data, information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files,
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic
representations, computer programs,, computer printouts, notes,
letters, memoranda, papers, and.documents, all whether finished or
unfinished.

10.2 All data and any Property which has been received from the
State, or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under this
Agreement, shall be the property of the Slate, and shall be returned
to the State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement
for any reason.
10.3 Disclosure of data, information and other records shall be

governed by N.H. RSA chapter 91-A and/or other applicable law.
Disclosure requires prior written approval of the State.

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In the

performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all respects an
independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor an employee of
the Stale. Neither the Contractor nor any of its officers, employees,
agents or members shall have authority to bind the State or receive
any benefits, workers' compensation or other emoluments
provided by the State to its employees.

12. assignment/delegation/subcontracts.

12.1 Contractor shall provide the State written notice at least fifteen
(15) calendar days before any proposed assignment, delegation, or
other transfer of any interest in this Agreement. No such
assignment, delegation, or other transfer shall be effective without
the written consent of the State.

12.2 For purposes of paragraph 12, a Change of Control shall
constitute assignment. "Change , of Control" means (a) merger,
consolidation, or a transaction or series of related transactions in
which a third party, together with its affiliates, becomes the direct
or indirect owner of fifty percent (50%) or more of the voting
shares or similar equity interests, or combined voting power of the
Contractor, or (b) the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of
the Contractor.

12.3 None of the Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor
without prior written notice and consent of the State.
12.4 The State is entitled to copies of all subcontracts and
assignment agreements and shall not be bound by any provisions
contained in a subcontract or an assignment agreement to which it
is not a party.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall indemnify,
defend, and hold harmless the State, its officers, and employees
from and against all actions, claims, damages, demands,
-judgments, fines, liabilities, losses, and other expenses, including,
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out of or
relating to this Agreement directly or indirectly arising from death,
personal injury, property damage, intellectual property
infringement, or other claims asserted against the State, its officers,
or employees caused by the acts or omissions of negligence,
reckless or willful misconduct, or fraud by the Contractor, its
employees, agents, or subcontractors. The State shall not be liable
for any costs incurred by. the Contractor arising under, this
paragraph 13. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the State's

sovereign immunity, which immunity is hereby reserved to the
State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall survive the termination
of this Agreement.
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14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
continuously maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor
or assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following insurance:
14.1.1 commercial general liability insurance against all claims of
bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts of not less than
$1,000,000 per occurrence and 52,000,000 aggregate or excess;
and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all Property
subject to subparagraph 10.2 herein, in an amount not less than
80% of the whole replacement value of the Property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall be on
policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the State of
New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of Insurance, and issued

by insurers licensed in the State of New Hampshire.
14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting. Officer
identified in block 1.9, or any successor, a certificate(s) of
insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement. At the
request of the Contracting Officer, or any successor, the Contractor
shall provide certificate(s) of insurance for all renewal(s) of
insurance required under this Agreement. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thereof shall be attached and are
.incorporated herein by reference.

15. WORKERS'COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees, certifies and
warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with or exempt from,
the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A ("Workers'
Compensation").
15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the requirements of
N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall maintain, and require
any subcontractor or assignee to secure and maintain, payment of
Workers' Compensation in connection with activities which the
person proposes to undertake-pursuant to this Agreement. The
Contractor shall furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block
1.9, or any successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are incorporated
herein by reference. The State shall not be responsible for payment
of any Workers' Compensation premiums or for any other claim or
benefit for Contractor, or any subcontractor or employee of
Contractor, which might arise under applicable State of New
Hampshire'Workers' Compensation laws in connection with the
performance of the Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. A State's failure to enforce its rights
with respect to any single or continuing breach of this Agreement
shall not act as a waiver of the right of the State to later enforce any
such rights or to enforce any other or any subsequent breach.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall
be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the time of
mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United Slates Post
Office addressed to the parties at the addresses given in blocks I .-2
and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or
discharged only by an instrument in writing signed by the parties
hereto and only after approval of such amendment, waiver or
discharge by the Governor and Executive Council of the State of
New Hampshire unless no such approval is required under the
circumstances pursuant to State law, rule or policy.

19. CHOICE OF LAW AND FORUM.

19.1 This Agreement shall be governed, interpreted and construed
in accordance with the laws of the State of New Hampshire except
where the Federal supremacy clause requires otherwise. The
wording used in this Agreement is the wording chosen by the
parties to express their mutual intent, and no rule of construction
shall be applied against or in favor of any party.
19.2 Any actions arising out of this Agreement, including the
breach or alleged breach thereof, may not be submitted to binding
arbitration, but must, instead, be brought and maintained in the
Merrimack County Superior Court of New Hampshire which shall
have exclusive jurisdiction thereof.

20. CONFLICTING TERMS. In the event of a conflict between

the terms of this P-37 form (as modified in EXHIBIT A) and any
other portion of this Agreement including any attachments thereto,
the terms of the P-37 (as modified in EXHIBIT A) shall control.

21. THIRD PARTIES. This Agreement is being entered into for
the sole benefit of the parties hereto, and nothing herein, express or
implied, is intended to or will confer any legal or equitable right,
benefit, or remedy of any nature upon any other person.

22. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are for
reference purposes only, and the words contained therein shall in
no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in the
interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of this
Agreement.

23. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional or modifying
provisions set forth in the attached EXHIBIT A are incorporated
herein by reference.

24. FURTHER ASSURANCES. The Contractor, along with its
agents and affiliates, shall, at its own cost and expense, execute any
additional documents and take such further actions as may be
reasonably required to carry out the provisions of this Agreement
and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

25. SEVERABILITV. In the event any of the provisions of this
Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be
contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining provisions of this
Agreement will remain in full force and effect.

26. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be
executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original, constitutes the entire agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings with respect to the subject matter
hereof.
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EXHIBIT A

Special Provisions

Additional Exhibits D-G

Federal Certification 2 CFR 200.415

Required certifications include: (a) To assure that expenditures are proper and in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Federal award and approved project
budgets, the annual and final fiscal reports or vouchers requesting payment under the
agreements must include a certification, signed by an official who is authorized to legally,
bind the non-Federal entity, which reads as follows:

By signing this report, I certify to the best of my knowledge and belief that the report is
true, complete, and accurate, and the expenditures, disbursements and cash receipts are for
the purposes and objectives set forth in the terms and conditions of the Federal award. I am
aware that any false, fictitious, or fraudulent information, or the omission of any material
fact, may subject me to criminal, civil or administrative penalties for fraud, false
statements, false claims or otherwise. (U.S. Code Title 18, Section 1001 and Title 31,
Sections 3729-3730 and 3801-3812).
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EXHIBIT B

Scope of Services

NAMI New Hampshire, (VC 166630) Concord, New Hampshire will provide;

Connect Suicide Prevention Training-This training includes how to identify suicide
warning signs and focuses on how to work across systems to build a safety net for individuals
at risk.

Thirty [30] participants will attend this one [I] day training to receive the suicide prevention
curriculum. This training will occur twice for a total of sixty [60] participants trained in the
curriculum. Participants will receive:

•  Certificate of completion

•  Printed handouts

•  Copy of the PowerPoint

Connect Suicide Prevention/Intervention Train-the-Trainer (ToT) - is a Nationally
Designated Best Practice Program, which builds capacity and sustainability for a community
to provide ongoing trmning in suicide prevention and postvention, generates suicide
prevention champions who will possess increased understanding to address these issues in a
comprehensive manner in their communities.

Sixteen [16] participants will attend this two [2] day training to become certified to deliver
the Connect Suicide Prevention Training. This training will occur twice for a total of thirty-
two [32] participants certified as trainers of the curriculum. Participants will receive:
•  Trainer's manual - a general overview of the Connect program, as well as

information on each training module and sample forms used.
•  Protocols - trainers will receive Connect protocols for each service discipline trained

in education. The trairiing encourages using the protocols during and after the
training.

•  PowerPoint - a page-by-page guide of the entire PowerPoint presentation. Each page
contains aii image of a slide used in the presentation, with training notes beneath the
slide. The training notes indicate what to say when presenting a particular slide and
introduces relevant information and descriptions of activities.

Connect Suicide Prevention Training Kits - kits include full activities the Trainers will
need to conduct the Connect Suicide Prevention Training. A total of four [4] kits will be
purchased to be shared among the Trainers, which is outlined below in NHED
responsibilities. The kits will need to be ordeired in FY 24 in order to have them in time for
the training in FY 25. The kit has four [4] activities with required materials to facilitate the
activity. The four [4] activities include:
•  Hot Potato

•  Facts, Actions and Response cards
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Pieces of the Puzzle; 7 roles with flags and instructions for trainer
3 Part School Scenarios

New Hampshire Department of Education (NHED) will be responsible for:

• Advertising and managing the registrations for the Connect Suicide Prevention Training.
These slots will be selected on a first-come, first-serve basis.

• Advertising and managing the applications for individuals to participate in becoming a
certified Connect Trainer by attending the'Connect Suicide Prevention/Intervention
Train-the-Trainer (ToT). These slots vvill be selected on a first-come, first-serve basis.

•  Distributing the Connect Suicide Prevention Training Kits to trainers as needed.

•  Securing two locations for the trainings to be held. Including space for two breakout
rooms, projectors, tables, and chairs.
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Budget:

EXHIBIT C

Method of Payment

Deliverables Cost Ouantit>' FV 24 FV25 Total

Connect Suicide

Prevention Training

$7,500.00 2 sessions $0 $15,000.00 $15,000.00

Connect Suicide

Prevention/lnter\'ention

Train-the-Trainer (ToT)

$15,900.00 2 cohorts $0 $31,800.00 $31,800.00

Connect Suicide

Prevention Training Kits
$300.00 4 kits $1,200.00 $0 $1,200.00

Total $1,200.00 $46,800.00 $48,000.00

Limitation on Price: Upon mutuaf agreement between the state contracting officer and the

contractor, line items in this budget may be adjusted one to another, but in no case shall the total
budget exceed the price limitation of $48,000.00

Source of Funding: Funds are available in the following account in Fiscal Years 2024 and 2025
with the authority to adjust budget line items within the price limitation and encumbrances between
Fiscal Years through the Budget.Office, if needed and justified.

06-56-56-562010-25080000 Project AWARE

Fiscal

Year

Class/Account Class Title Total Amount

2024 . 102-500731 Contracts for Program Sendees $1,200.00

2025 102-500731 Contracts for Program Services $46,800.00

Total $48,000.00

Method of Payment: Payment is to be made on the basis of invoices which are supported by a
summary of completed deliverables, as outlined by budget line, that have taken place in
accordance with the terms of the contract, along with a detailed listing of expenses incurred. If
otherwise correct and acceptable, payment will be made for 100% of the expenditures listed. A
final invoice is due within 30 days of the end of this contract. Invoices and reports shall be
submitted to:

Molly White
Office of Social and Emotional Wellness

NH Department of Education
mollv.v.white@doe.nh.gov

ConirocI between NAMi New Hampshire and the New Hampshire Department of Education

Confrocfor (ni7/ois_SLS.

Date_04/24/2024
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EXHIBIT D

Contractor Obligations

Contracts in excess of the simplified acquisition threshold (currently set at $250,000) must address
administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where the contractors violate or breach
contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as appropriate. Reference:
2 C.F.R. § 200.326 and 2 C.F.R. 200, Appendix 11, required contract clauses.

The contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and
Statements) applies to the contractor's actions pertaining to this contract.

The Contractor, certifies and affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and
disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. §
3801 et seq., apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Breach

A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for tennination of the contract, and for debarment
as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. §5.12.

Fraud and False Statements

The Contractor understands that, if the project which is the subject of this Contract is financed in whole or
in part by federal funds, that if the undersigned, the company that the Contractor represents, or any
employee or agent thereof, knowingly makes any false statement, representation, report or claim as to the
character, quality, quantity, or cost of material used or to be used, or quantity or quality work performed or
to be performed, or makes any false statement or representation of a material fact in any statement,
certificate, or report, the Contractor and any company that the Contractor represents may be subject to
prosecution under the provision of 18 USC § 1001 and § 1020.

Environmental Protection

(This clause is applicable if this Contract exceeds $150,000. It applies to Federal-aid contracts only.)
The Contractor is required to comply with all applicable standards, orders or requirements issued under
Section 306 of the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 1857 (h), Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. 1368),
Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regulations (40 CFR Part 15) which
prohibit the lise under non-exempt Federal contracts, grants or loans of facilities included on the EPA List
of Violating Facilities. Violations shall be reported to the FHWA and to the U.S. EPA Assistant
Administrator for Enforcement.

Procurement of Recovered Materials

In accordance with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act (42 U.S.C. § 6962), State agencies and
agencies of a political subdivision of a state that are using appropriated Federal funds for procurement must
procure items designated in guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR 247 that
contain the highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a satisfactory
level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the value of the quantity
acquired in the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; must procure solid waste management services in
a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and must have established an affirmative
procurement program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

Revised June 2022
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Exhibit E

Federal Debarment and Suspension

a. By signature on this Contract, the Contractor certifies its compliance, and the compliance of its
Sub-Contractors, present or future, by stating that any person associated therewith in the capacity
of owner, partner, director, officer, principal investor, project director, manager, auditor, or any
position of authority involving federal funds:

1. Is not currently under suspension, debarment, voluntary exclusion, or determination of
ineligibility by any Federal Agency;

2. Does not have a proposed debarment pending;

3. Has not been suspended, debarred, voluntarily excluded or determined ineligible by any
Federal Agency within the past three (3) years; and

4. Has not been indicted, convicted, or had a civil judgment rendered against the firm by a coun
of competent jurisdiction in any matter involving fraud or official misconduct within the past
three (3) years.

b. Where the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor is unable to certify to thp statement in Section a.l.
above, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall be declared ineligible to enter into Contract or
participate in the project.

c. Where the Contractor or Sub-Contractor is unable to certify to any of the statements as listed in
Sections a.2., a.3., or a.4., above, the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor shall submit a written
explanation to the NHED. The certification or explanation shall be considered in connection with
the NHED's determination whether to enter into Contract.

d. The Contractor shall provide immediate written notice to the NHED if, at any time,
the Contractor or its Sub-Contractor, learn that its Debarment and Suspension certification has
become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.

Page 10 of 12 Contractor Initials
Date <W24«)24



Exhibit F

Anti-Lobbying

The Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121,
Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C; 1352, and further agrees .
to have the Contractor's representative, execute the following Certification:

The Contractor certifies, by signing and submitting this contract, to the best of his/her knowledge and belief,
that:

a. No federal appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned,
to any.person for influencing or attempting to influence any officer or employee of any State or
Federal Agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any
federal grant, the making of any federal loan, the entering into any cooperative agreement, and the
extension, continuation, renewal amendment, or modification of any Federal contract grant, loan,
or cooperative agreement.

b. If any funds other than federally appropriated funds have been paid or shall .be paid to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal Agency, a Member
of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall
complete and submit the "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" form in accordance with its
instructions

https://www.gsa.gov/fonTis-librarv/discl6siire-lobbving-activities

c. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making
and entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31 and U.S. Code. Any person
who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than SI 0,000
and not more than $ 100,000 for each such failure.

d. The Contractor also agrees, by signing this contract that it shall require that the language of this
certification be included in subcontracts with all Sub-Contraclor(s) and lower-tier Sub-Contractors

which exceed $100,000 and that all such Sub-Contractors and lower-tier Sub-Contractors shall
certify and disclose accordingly.

e. The NHED shall keep the firm's certification on file as part of its original contract. The Contractor
shall keep individual certifications from all Sub-Contractors and lower-tier Sub-Contractors on file.
Certification shall be retained for three (3) years following completion and acceptance of any given
project.

SLS

Page 11 of 12 Conlractor Initials
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Exhibit G

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract, Copy Rights and Confidentiality

Rights to Inventions Made Under a Contract or Agreement
Contracts or agreements for the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work shall
provide for the rights of the Federal Government and the recipient in any resulting invention in accordance
with 37 CFR part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms
Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," and any implementing regulations
issued by the NHED.

Any discovery or invention that arises during the course of the contract shall be reported to the NHED. The
Contractor is required to disclose inventions promptly to the contracting officer (within 2 months) after the
inventor discloses it in writing to contractor personnel responsible for patent matters. The awarding agency
shall determine how rights in the invention/discovery shall be allocated consistent with "Govemment Patent
Policy" and Title 37 C.F.R. § 401. \

Confidentiality

Ail Written and oral information and materials disclosed or provided by the NHED under this agreement
constitutes Confidential Information, regardless of whether such information was provided before or after
the date on this agreement or how it was provided.

The Contractor and representatives thereof, acknowledge that by making use of, acquiring or adding to
information about matters and data related to this agreement, which are confidential to the NHED and its
paitners, must retfiain the exclusive property of the NHED.

Confidential information means all data and information related to the business and operation of the NHED,
including but not limited to all school and student data contained in NH Title XV, Education, Chapters 186-.
200.

Confidential information includes but is not limited to, student and school district data, revenue and cost
information, the source code for computer software and hardware products owned in part or in whole by
the NHED, financial information, partner information(including the identity of NHED partners). Contractor
and supplier information, (including the identity of NHED Contractors and suppliers), and any information
that has been marked "confidential" or "proprietary", or with the like designation. During the term of this
contract the Contractor agrees to abide by such rules as may be adopted from time to time by the NHED to
maintain the security of all confidential information. The Contractor further agrees that it will always regard
and preserve as confidential information/data received during the performance of this contract. The
Contractor will not use, copy, make notes, or use excerpts of any confidential information, nor will it give,
disclose, provide access to, or otherwise make available any confidential information to any person not
employed or contracted by the NHED or subcontracted with the Contractor.

Ownership of Intellectual Property
The NHED shall retain ownership of all source data and other intellectual property of the NHED provided
to the Contractor in order to complete the services of this agreement. As well the NHED will retain
copyright ownership for any and all materials, patents and intellectual property produced, including, but
not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols, guidelines, posters, or reports. The Contractor
shall not reproduce any materials for purposes other than use for the terms under the contract without prior
written approval from the NHED.

Revised June 2022
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CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY

I. ̂ Todd Donovan ^ : , hereby certify that:

1. 1 am a duly elected President of _NAMI New Hampshire •

2. The following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders, duly called and
held on _April 17, 2024, at which a quorum of the Directors/shareholders were present and voting.

VOTED: That _Susan L. Steams, Executive Director ^ {may list more than one person)

is duly authorized on behalf of NAMI New Hampshire_ to enter into contracts or agreements
with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any
and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto,
which may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

3. I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
thirty (30) days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. I further certify that it is understood that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the
position(s) indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire,
all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: April 17. 2024 Signature of Elected Officer
Name: Todd Donovan

Title: President .

Rev. 03/24/20



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, David M. Scanlan, Sccrelar>' of Slate of the Slate of New Mampshire, do. hereby certify lhat NAMI NIEW HAMPSHIRE is"

a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transaci business in New Hampshire on September 24, 1982. 1 further

certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's ofilcc have been received and is in good standing as far as

this ofTice is concerned.

Business ID: 62349

Certificate Number: 0006575378

la.

o

d)

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 15th day of Februar>' A.D. 2024.

David M. Scanlan

Secretan.' of Stale



Business Information

Business Details

Business Name: NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE Business ID: 62349

Business Type: Domestic Nonprofit Corporation ^Business Status: Good Standing ̂

Business Creation Date: 09/24/1982
Name in State of ,

Not Available
Incorporation;

Date of Formation in
,  . . . 09/24/1982
Jurisdiction; -

Principal Office Address: 85 North State Street. Concord, Mailing Address: 85 North State Street Concord,

NH, 03301, USA NH, 03301, USA

Citizenship/State of ,, ..
Domestic/New Hampshire

Incorporation:

Last Nonprofit

Report Year:

^ Next Report Year 2025 ^
Duration: Perpetual

Business Enriail: info@naminh.org Phone #: 603-225-5359

Notification Email: tmurray@naminh.org
Fiscal Year End

NONE
Date:

Principal Purpose

S.No NAICS Code

1

Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 1 of 1

OTHER / FOSTERIN

NAICS Subcode

G RESEARCH IN MENTAL

ILLNESS

Principals Information

Name/Title

Kate Atkinson / Director

Diane Blair/ Director

Barb Brunelle / Director

Russell Conte/ President

Ross Cunningharh / Vice President

Business Address

21 Centre Street. Concord, NH. 03301, USA

11 lan's Way, Farmington, NH, 03835, USA

14 Baldwin Lane, Bedford, NH, 03110, USA

33 Hazen Drive, Nh Dept of Safety, NH, 0330S, USA

26 Wethersfield Drive, Northfield, NH, 03276. USA

Previous ... 1 - | NextTj Page 1 of 4. records 1 to 5 of 20 | | |go to Page



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMfDOnmno

03/19/2024

THIS CERTIRCATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIRCATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY ifUHlEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POUCIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIRCATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDiTIONM. INSURED, the pclicy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificete does not confer rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementfs).

PRODUCER

E & S Insurance Services LLC

21 MeaOowbrookLane

POBOX7425

GITord NH 03247-7425

'  Eleatw spinazzoia •

<603)293-2«1 <603)293.7188

Eieanorspinazzola^esmsurance.net

MSUICRIS) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICI

MSURER A: Philadelphia Insurance Co

MSURQ)

National AillaiKe on Mental IDness, NAMI-NH

85 North State Street

I

ConcofO NH 03301

MSURER B: Technology insurance Co 42376

MSURER C:

MSURER 0:

MSURER E:

MSURERF:

COVERAGES CERTIRGATE NUMBER: 24-25 REVISION NUMBER:

. THIS IS TO CERTIP/ TWAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD

INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR hUY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLCIES 0ESCRI3E0 HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

WSHT
TYPEOFMSURANCE

:i

POUCY NUMBER UMTSLTR

X COMMERCIAL GENERAL UABIUTY

CLAM344A0E OCCUR

GENl AOGREGWE LRffTAPI^S PER
POLICY Q ̂ Q LOG
OTHER:

05A)7/2024 05rt)7/2025

EACH OCCURRENCE
DWRCETDTERTHJ
PREMSESIEaocomnol

MED EXP (Aw one peraon)

PERSONAL S A£V INJURY

GENERALAGGREGATE

PRODUCTS - COM>iOP AGO

ADMol Cnsir. CIssSpc

SINGLE Ll.tfr
lEaacddwO

1.000.000

100.000

5.X0

1.000.000

3.W0.000

3.rao.ooo

$ 1.000.000

AUTOMOBRE UAenjTY

ANYAUTO BOOLYINAJRY (Pv pvKn>

Qm€D
AUTOS ONLY

HRS)
AUTOS 0<.Y

SCHEDULED
AUTOS ..
NCNOMCD
AUTOS CN.Y

BCOEYIKIURY ̂  acddenl)

TraPBITTTSTOBE —
(Pwacddnrtl

X UteRELLAUAB

EXCESS UAS

OCCUR

CLAMSMACE

EACH OCCURRENCE 1.000.000

05/07/2024 05/07/2025 AGGREGATE

OED X RETENTION S <0.000
PER

^ STATUTE
■OTTT
ER

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'UABBJTY
ANY PROPRCTORffWTTNERIEXECUTIVE
OFFICERMEiAER EXauOEDT
(MmdMorylnNH)
0 VM tfidv
OESdRIPTION OF CPERATOe b«kw

H 10/10/2023 10/10/2024 EL.EAGHACOOENT 500.000

EL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE 500.000

E.L. OSCASE • PaCY LMT 500.000

DESCRBTTCN OF OPBUmONS/LOCATIONS/VEIflCLES (ACORD191. AddUofiN RBmats ScfwduM. R«y te Mtactwd tf mora tpK* if raquirt^

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATK3N

NH Department of Education

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRAHON DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

25 Hafl Street
AimOaZEO REPRESENTATIVE

Concord
1

NH 03301

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

€> 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
The ACORD name and logo are registered marirs of ACORD
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nnini New Hampshire

MISSION

NAMI New Hampshire is a grassroots organization working to improve the lives of all people
affected by mental illness and suicide through support, education and advocacy.

VISION

We envision a future where people affected by mental illness have hope, help, and health, and
are able to:

* Access the supports and evidence-based treatment necessary forrecovery; •

Have a lifespan that is not cut short by suicide or co-occurring conditions; and •
Reach their full potential, living in their communities free from discrimination.

GUIDING VALUES

Compassion. We offer compassion and empathy to all who are affected by mental illness and
suicide.

Dignity. We believe everyone deserves to be free from judgment, and strive to foster hope
always.

Inclusiveness. We respect people, value the voice of individuals with lived experience, and are

committed to equality and diversity.

Collaboration. We are committed to a culture of teamwork and collaboration with diverse

partners, working toward shared goals.

Integrity. We believe in openness and transparency, stewarding our resources, and being
accountable to the individuals and families we serve, our members, and our funders.

Find Help, Find Hope.

NAMI New Hampshire • 85 North State Street • Concord, NH 03301
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors

NAMl New Hampshire

I

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NAMI New Hampshire (a nonprofit
organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the
related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements.

in our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
NAMl New Hampshire as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows
for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of NAMl New Hampshire and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that
the audit evidence we have, obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities ofManagementfor the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation^ of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about NAMl New Hampshire's ability to
continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be
issued.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as'a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and



Government Auditing Standards .vj'\\\ always delect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing ah audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit;

•  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include e.xamining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

•  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of NAMI New Hampshire's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

•  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about NAMI New Hampshire's ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing.of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 28,
2023, on our consideration of NAMl New Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely, to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of NAMl New Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering NAMl New Hampshire's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 28, 2023



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2023 and 2022

ASSETS

2023 2022

CURRENT ASSETS:

Cash

Investments

Accounts receivable, net

Grants receivable

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:

Land

Building and improvements

Equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Less accumulated depreciation

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Investments

TOTAL OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

202,257

1,437,882

175,491

418,116

2,233,746

290,800

1,177,690

8,218
604

1,477,312

(252,259)

1,225,053

929,259

929,259

551,943

881,555

268.685

572.686

2,274,869

290,800

1,177,690

8,218

604

1,477,312

(222,015)

1,255,297

821,634

821,634

S 4.388,058 $ 4,351,800

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Reftindable grant

Current portion of mortgage notes payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Mortgage,notes payable, less current portion

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated

Board designated

With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions

TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See notes to financial statements

108,662

384,731

33,333

17,022

543,748

293,883

293,883

837,631

2,621,168

929,259

3,550,427

213,569

273,190

152,083

16,137

654,979

■317,905
317,905

972,884

2,557,282
821,634

3,378,916

.$ 4,388,058 $ 4,351,800



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES

For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

2023 2022

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
j

REVENUE AND SUPPORT: (
Fees and grants from governmental agencies S  2,8.84,587 $  2,516,451

Contributions 828,635 663,216

Interest and dividends 21,441 283

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments 66,148- (94,158)

In-kind donations 29,187 ■ -

Fundraising events 223,030 200,565

Training services ■- 1,604,084 1,439,974

Membership dues ■  ■ 3,557 . 3,968
Other revenue "94,677 92,654
Net assets released from donor restrictions - .  43,522

TOTAL REVENUE AND SUPPORT

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 5,755,346 4,866,475

EXPENSES:

PROGRAM SERVICES:
Community and Public Policy Relations 278,839 218,090
Connect Suicide Prevention Project 900,271 863,686
Public Education 3,122,205 2,679,246

TOTAL PROGRAM SERVICES 4,301,315 3,761,022

SUPPORTING SERVICES:
Management and General 876,577 683,297
Fundraising 405,943 343,561

TOTAL SUPPORTING SERVICES 1,282,520 1,026,858

TOTAL EXPENSES 5,583,835 4,787,880

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS 171,511 78,595

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
Net assets released from donor restrictions

DECREASE IN NET ASSETS

WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS-JULY 1

[71,51]

3.378,916

(43,522)

(43.522)

35,073

3.343.843

NET ASSETS-JUNE 30 $  3,550,427 $ 3,378,916

See notes tofinancial statements
■)



NAMl NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries

Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

OTHER EXPENSES:

Accounting

Audit fees

Legal and membership fees
Contracted scr\'iccs

Client services/training

Software subscriptions

Staff conferences and conventions

Occupancy

OfTice supplies

Maintenance

Fundraising/Event supplies

Depreciation

Food supplies
Equipment rental

Equipment maintenance

Advertising

Printing

Telephone and communications

Postage and shipping
StafT transportation

Insurance

In-kind goods and ser\'ices

Other expenditures

Total

Program Services Supponing Services

Community Connect

and Public Suicide Total Management Total

Policy Prevention Public Program . and Supporting Total

Relations Protect Education Services General Fundraisinc Services Exnenses

$  218,072 $  317,550 $ 2,149,771 $  2,685,393 $  . 648,033 $  187,795 $  835,828 $  3,521,221

14,795 34,428 273,321 322,544 71,278 22,524 93,802 416,346

14,711 24,890 159,852 199,453 68,867 .. 12,700 81,567 281,020

247,578 376,868 2,582,944 3,207,390 788,178 223,019 1,011,197 4,218,587

815 2,605 10,948 14,368 2,754 4,077 6,831 21,199

875 2,832 10,325 14,032 2,460 1,050 3,510 17,542

150 1,928 1,030 3,108 3,251 1,032 4,283 7,391

5,139 402,612 '  134,776 ■  542,527 10,838 24,821 35,659 578,186

1,966 49,810 84,530 . 136,306 1,072 201 1,273 137,579

1.835 7,020 20,451 29,306 3,310 39,199 42,509 71,815

173 1,050 1,594 2,817 4,017 4,477 .8,494 11,311

1,549 ■  4,833 17,658 24,040 5,080 1,859 6,939 30,979

2,292 7,404 40,459 50,155 6,524 11,231 17,755 67,910

4,050 1,268 46,232 51,550 24,651 4,860 29,511 81,061

1,806 1,806 25,120 25,120 26,926

1,510 4,735 17,514 23,759 "  4,673 1,812 6,485 30,244

3,850 3,413 13,499 20,762 1,546 15,225 16,771 37,533

730 2,318 9,784 12,832 2,208 988 3,196 16,028

2,925 2,925 3,071 3,071 5,996

207 207 -
207

1,775 381 2,156 234 7,500 7,734 9,890

2,113 6,179 41,872 50,164 3,198 2,715 5,913 56,077

713 128 2,599 3,440 1,621 3,685 5,306 8,746

,681 22,007 68,756 91,444 3,919 2,631 6,550 97,994

.1,045 3,261 11,915 16,221 3,428 1,254 4,682 20,903
V

- 29,187 29,187 29,187

. . 544 544 544

$  278,839 $  900,271 $  3,122,205 $  4,301-,315 $  876,577 $  405,943 $  1,282,520 $  5,583,835

See notes tofinancial statements
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

SALARIES AND RELATED EXPENSES:

Salaries

Employee benefits

Payroll taxes

OTHER EXPENSES:

Accounting

Audit fees

Legal and membership fees
Contracted services

Client services/training

SoRware subscriptions

Staff conferences and conventions

Occupancy

OlTice supplies

Maintenance

Fundraising/Event supplies

Depreciation

Food supplies

Equipment rental

Equipment maintenance

Advertising

Printing

Telephone and communications
Postage and shipping

Staff transportation

Insurance

Other expenditures

Total

Program Services Supporting Ser\'ices

Community Connect

Totaland Public Suicide Total Management

Policy Prevention Public Program and Supporting Total

Relations Proiect Education Services General Fundraisine Services Exoenses

$  161,790 $  310,117 $  1,859,793 $  2,331.700 $  427,114 $  155,695 $  582,809 $  2,914,509

21,940 53,485 287,303 362,728 28,552 19,775 , 48,327 411,055

11,469 22,607 139,717 173,793 44,601 10,051 54,652 228,445

195,199 386,209 2,286,813 2,868,221 500;267 185,521 685,788 3,554.009

508 2,158 6.729 9,395 2.412 889 3,301 12,696

800 3,400 10,600 14,800 3,800 1,400 5,200 20,000

-  1,964 1,715 3,679 6,156 6,156 9,835

696 390.990 57,378 449,064 41,970 48,260 90,230 539,294

3,774 13,023 88,394 105,19! 5,458 5,741 11,199 1 16,390

■  322 1,248 28,676 30,246 14,155 10,444 24,599 54,845

340 1,691 3,004 5,035 12,669 2,628 15,297 20,332

1,289 5,479 17,082 23,850 6,210 2,256 8,466 32,316

4,221 11,681 32,390 .48,292 15,821 7,493 23,314 71,606

5,244 22,286 . 69,483 97.013 24,908 9,177 34,085 131,098

- 27,826 27,826 ■ 27,826

1,296 5,51 1 11,291 18,098 6,158 2,269 8,427 26,525

86 1,610 1,696 5,458 20,673 26,131 27,827

562 2,389 7,449 10,400 2,670 984 3,654 14,054

4,712 4,712 " 8,458 338 8,796 13,508

275 275 66 66 341

275 1,277 3,650 5,202 202 7,613 7,815 13,017

2,819 5,187 27,659 35,665 22,115 1,657 23,772 59,437

51 223 3,187 3,461 1,114 5,392 6,506 9,967

8 5,149 11,865 17,022 285 1,415 1,700 18,722

520 2,211 6,894 9.625 2,472 911 3,383 13,008

80 80 . 539 608 1,147 1,227

$  218,090 $  863,686 $  2,679,246 $  3,761,022 $  683,297- $  343,561 $  1,026,858 $ 4,787,880

See notes tofinancial statements
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from grants, contributions, and contracts
Interest income received

Cash paid to employees
Cash paid to suppliers and others
Interest paid

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of investments

Sale of investments

Net Cash Used for Investing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING.ACTIVITIES:
Payments on rriortgage notes payable

Net Cash Used for Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash

Cash, beginning of year

Cash, ending of year

2023

5,756,968

21,441

(3,501,829)

(2,000,088)
(12,237)

264,255

(697,804)

100.000

(597.804)

.  (16,137)

(16,137)

(349,686)

551,943

202,257

2022

$ 4,902,621

283

(2,812,084)

(1,703,026)
(16,254)

371,540

(261,803)

(261,803)

(84,417)

(84,417)

25,320

526,623

551,943

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-cash Transactions:
Unrealized gains (losses) on investments

Forgiveness of debt

66,148

7,000

$  (94,15,8)

73,148 $ (94,158)

See notes to financial statements
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NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 arid 2022

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Organization and Purpose

NAMI New Hampshire (National Alliance on Mental Illness) was founded as a nonprofit corporation in
1982 and is committed to improving the lives of all people affected by mental illness and suicide through
support, education and advocacy. As a grassroots coalition of people living with mental illness and their
families, NAMI NH has over 40 years of service to Granite State children, transition age youth, adults,
and seniors, offering statewide activities which provide education/training and support to individuals,
families and communities. The organization also promotes and provides advocacy and empowerment at
the individual/family level as well as at the systems level by offering members, volunteers, and
stakeholders training and graduated opportunities to build confidence in advocacy, and leadership skills.
Last year, NAMI NH provided support, education and advocacy to over 15,000 individuals. The financial
support for these programs and activities comes frorri a variety of sources that include governmental and
private foundation grants, contract services, donations, and membership dues.

We envision a future where people affected by mental illness have hope, help, and health, and are able to:
•  Access the supports and evidence-based treatment necessary for recovery;
•  Have a lifespan that is not cut short by suicide or co-occurring conditions; and
•  Reach their full potential, living in their communities free from discrimination.

In support of our mission, NAMI NH is dedicated to providing support, education and advocacy equitably
without discrimination against, or harassment of; any person on the basis of race, color, national origin,
language, religion, sex, age, disability, citizenship, marital status, creed, sexual orientation, gender
expression or gender identity (individuals' preferred gender will be respected, and individuals will be
refeircd to by their name and pronoun of choice, whenever feasible) or any other characteristic protected
by federal or state law. Any such discrimination or harassment is prohibited and will not be tolerated.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of NAMI New Hampshire conform to accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America as applicable to non-profit entities except as indicated hereafter. The
following is a summary of significant accounting-policies.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis ofPresentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining

to Not-for-ProfIt Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is
required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications:



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Net Assets Withoul Donor Restrictiom - Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject
to donor or certain grantor restrictions. The governing board has designated, from net assets without
donor restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor imposed restrictions.
Some donor imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature,
where the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are
released when a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated
purpose for which the resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition ofDonor Restrictions

Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. The Entity reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is; when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor
restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the
nature of the restrietions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions.

Donated Services, Materials and Facilities

NAME New Hampshire receives significant , volunteer time and efforts. The value of these volunteer
efforts, while critical to the success of its mission, are not reflected in the financial statements because the
accounting criteria for recognition of such volunteer efforts have not been satisfied.

Donated goods and professional services are recorded as both revenues and expenses at their estimated
fair value. The Entity received donated supplies and professional services- in support of fundraising
activities totaling $29,187 and -$0- during the years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or supporting function. Accordingly, certain indirect costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited. Salaries, employee benefits, payroll taxes, accounting, audit
fees, legal fees, occupancy, maintenance, depreciation, equipment rental, equipment maintenance,
telephone, and insurance are distributed based on a cost allocation process. Expenses are initially charged
to each program or supporting function based on time and effort. Expenses associated with management
and general are then allocated among the program and supporting services based on one of two criteria.
The first criteria used is to allocate indirect costs based on the indirect cost rate established by the grantor,
if there is no indirect rate specified, the overhead rate as it appears on the IRS form 990 of the preceding
year will be used.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.(CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Cash and Cash Equivalents ■ "

For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and equivalents consists of demand deposits, cash
on hand and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less. ^

Investments

Investments, which consist principally of money market accounts, certificates of deposits, mutual funds,
and exchange traded funds, are carried at their market value at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022.
Investments reported as non-current represent amounts designated by the Board as held for reserves.
Unrealized gains and losses on investments are reflected in the .statements of activities.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donated property and equipment is recorded at fair value
determined as of the date of the donation. The. Entity's policy is to capitalize expenditures for major
improvements with a cost in excess of SI,000 and to charge to operations currently for expenditures
which do not extend the lives of related assets in the period incurred. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method at rates intended to amortize the cost of related assets over their estimated useful
lives as follows:

Years

Building and improvements 39 •
Equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 7-10

Depreciation expense was $30,244 and 526,525 for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Compensated Absences

Full-time and part-time employees are entitled to paid vacation based on their length of employment.
Employees are allowed to carry forward a maximum of 10 vacation days. Upon termination of
employment, full-time employees will receive up to five days of accrued/unused vacation pay. Accrued
vacation pay amounted to $58,356 and S47,248 as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. An allowance for uncollected
receivables of 54,000 has been recorded as of June 30, 2023 and 2022.

Income Taxes

The Entity is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been determined by the Internal Revenue
Seryice not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. The Entity is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS.



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

I

FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes requires the
Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Entity had no uncertain tax
positions as of June 30, 2023 and, accordingly, does not have any unrecognized tax benefits that need to
be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States' of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses are carried in the financial statements
at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term nature of the transactions. The,
fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates, which for certain accounts may differ
significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate liquidation.

Revenue Recognition

The Entity recognizes contributions, donations, and other miscellaneous income when cash is received or
, based on donor restrictions as described previously. Interest income is recognized monthly as accrued.
The Entity recbgnizes revenue from contracts with customers in the form of training and consultation
services provided to organizations and individuals. Revenue for training and consultation ;services are
recognized at a point in time as services are rendered. Amounts recognized are based on amounts
invoiced. Payment is due on presentation of invoice.

The Entity also has revenue derived from governmental contracts for support services provided to
individuals. Revenue from governmental contracts is recognized when the Entity has met the performance
requirements specified by contract provisions. For governmental contracts, services are invoiced on a
monthly basis in arrears, however, a receivable may be recorded in advance of amounts invoiced if all
other performance requirements have been satisfied. Payment is due on presentation of invoice.

NOTE 2—ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued guidance (Accounting
Standards Codification [ASC] 842, Leases) to increase transparency and comparability among
organizations by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities on the balance
sheet. Most prominent among the changes in the standard is the recognition of ROU assets and lease
liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases. Under the standard, disclosures are
required to meet the objective of enabling users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing, and
uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases. The Entity may, from time to time, enter into various
agreements as lessee for use of equipment. Management has evaluated its lease agreements and
determined that the effect of implementing ASC 842 related to such agreements is immaterial to the
financial statements.



NAMl NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED}
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

NOTE 3—LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Entity regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments. Cash reserves in excess of daily operational needs are invested with the
objective of providing a mix of income and growth, but overall to protect the organization's accumulated
wealth. Investments can be made in the following securities: certificates of deposit, rhoney market mutual
funds, exchange traded funds, and corporate bonds. Sources of liquidity include cash, investments, and
accounts receivable.

For purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over a 12-nionth period, the
Entity considers all expenditures related to its ongoing programs and activities as well as the conduct of
services undertaken to support those activities to be general expenditures.

The following table reflects the Entity's financial assets as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial
position date because of donor and other restrictions or intemal board designations. Amounts not
available include the intemal board designated funds. In the event the need arises to utilize the board
designated funds for liquidity purposes, the funds could be drawn upon by . a vote of the Finance
Committee.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the financial position date, comprise the following:

2023 2022

Cash $  202,257 $  551,943

Investments 2,367,141 1,703,189

Accounts receivable, net 175,491 268,685

Grants receivable 418,116 572,686

Total Financial Assets 3,163,005 3,096,503

Less:

Net assets with donor restrictions -

.  .

Board designated funds (929,259) (821,634)

Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash Needs

for General Expenditures Within One Year $ 2,233,746 S 2,274,869

NOTE 4—SIGNIFICANT CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Entity maintains bank deposits at local financial institutions located in New Hampshire. The Entity's
cash deposits are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) up to a total of $250,000
at each financial institution. As of June 30, 2023, deposits with financial institutions were fully insured
within FDIC insurance limits.

NOTE 5—INVESTMENTS

Fair Value Measurements

The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the FASB Accounting
Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820), which establishes a framework for measuring fair value. That

ID



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservablc inputs
(level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below.

Level 1 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs to the valuation include:
•  Quoted, prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
•  Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active;
•  Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
•  Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by

correlation,or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability..

Level 3 - Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value
measurement.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized
within different levels of .the. fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is
categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire
measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and
does not necessarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or
liability.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Money market funds, mutual funds, exchange traded funds, and equities: Valued at the closing price
reported on the active market on which the individual securities are traded.

Certificates ofdeposit and corporate debt securities: Valued using a market approach valuation technique
which incorporates third-party pricing ser\'ices and other relevant observable information such as market
interest rates, yield curves, prepayment risk and credit risk generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities in valuing these types of investments.

The methods described above may produce a fair value calculation that rhay not be indicative of net
realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, while the Entity believes its valuation
methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use of different methodologies
or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different fair
value measurement at the reporting date.

1 1



NAMl NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOtES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity's assets measured at fair
value as of June 30, 2023 and 2022:

. . Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2023 '
Level 1 . Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market mutual funds S 1,140,464 $ 1,140,464
Mutual funds 431,478 431,478
Exchange traded funds 41 1,053 411,053
Certificates of deposit $ 379,152 379,152
Corporate debt securities 4,994 . 4,994
Total assets at fair value $__L982^99^ $__384J^ $_2^367J^^

Assets at Fair Value as of June 30, 2022
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Money market mutual funds S .917,637 $ 917,637
Mutual funds 368,677 368,677
Exchange traded funds 370,173 370,173
Certificates of deposit $ 41,694 41,694
Corporate debt securities 3,008 • 3,008
Total assets at fair value ^_L65C4^ S_^46j70^ ^_L703J_^

NOTE 6—MORTGAGE NOTES PAYABLE

At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the mortgage notes payable consist of the following:

2023 2022

$348,000 mortgage note payable, secured by property, payable
in monthly installments of $2,3W including interest through March 2028.
Interest is fixed at 5.35% through March 2028, with interest thereafter
based on the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston Advance rate plus 3%. S 219,905 $ 236,042

$140,000 mongage note payable to the City of Concord, New
Hampshire is non-interest bearing and is secured by the property.
The Entity is a subrecipient of Community Development Block
Grant funds which were used to create an ADA compliant
community education space. Repayment of the funds will be
required in the event of noncompliance with the grant. The note
will be forgiven over a period of 20 years through December 31, 2034. 91,000 98,000

$ 310,905 S 334,042

Under the terms of the mortgage note payable for the property located at 87 Nonh Slate Street, Concord
New Hampshire, with a balance outstanding as of June 30, 2023 of 5219,905, the Entity must maintain a
loan to value ratio of less than 80%. Additionally, the Entity must demonstrate a debt service coverage
ratio of at least 1.00. As of June 30, 2023, the Entity was in compliance with the debt requirements.

12



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

Following are the maturities of the mortgage notes payable as of June 30, 2023;

Year Ending
June 30. Amount

2024 $ 17;022

2025 17,955

2026 18,940
2027 19,978.

2028 . 21,074
Thereafter 124,936

-  ■ $ 219,905

NOTE 7—BOARD DESIGNATED NET ASSETS

Board designated net assets consist of the following at June 30, 20i23 and 2022:

2023 2022

Contingency fiind $ 779,259 S 671,634
Fixed Asset fund 100,000 100,000

Special Opportunity fund 50,000 50,000
S  929,259 ■ $ 821,634

NOTE 8—REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The following tables provide information about balances of receivables, contract assets, and contract
liabilities associated with contracts with customers for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022:

Contract Contract

Receivables Assets Liabilities

June 30,2023 $ 175,491 S - $ -

,  June 30,2022 $ 268,685 S - $ -

July 1,2021 S 355,275 S - $ -

NOTE 9^0NCENTRATI0N OF REVENUE RISK

The Entity's primary source of revenues is fees and grants received from the State of New Hampshire and
directly from the federal government. During the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Entity
recognized revenue of 52,884,587 and 52,516,452, respectively, from fees and grantsTrom governmental
agencies. These represented 50% and 52% of total revenue and support without donor restrictions for the
years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Revenue is recognized as earned under the terms of the
grant agreements and is received on a cost reimbursement basis. Other support originates from training
services, contributions, in-kind donations, and other income.

NOTE 10—RETIREMENT PLAN

The Entity has a deferred compensation retirement plan under Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue
Code. Under the terms of the plan, employee contributions are made through a salary reduction plan.
During the years ending June 30, 2023 and 2022, the Entity's contribution to the plan was equal to up to

13



NAMl NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)-
For the Years Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022

3.0% of each eligible employee's annual salary. The Entity contributed S65,021 and S51,064 for the years
ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE 11—CONTINGENCIES

The Entity participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs. These programs are subject to
financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The amounts, if any, of additional
expenses which may be disallowed by the granting agency cannot be determined at this time, although the
Entity expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 12—SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through December.28, 2023 which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued.

14



SCHEDULE 1

NAMI New Hampshire

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Federal Grantor / Pass-Through

Grantor / Program or Cluster Title

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Received directly from U.S. Treasury Department

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional and National Significance

Pass Through Payments from the City of Manchester, New Hampshire
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional and National Significance
Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of Regional and National Significance

Assistance

Listing

Number

93.243

93.243

93.243

Pass-Through

Entity

Identifying

Number

N/A

#IH79SM0822l0-03

#rH79SM0822l0-04

Expenditures

$  789,750

41,534

140,117

181,651

971,401

Received directly from U.S. Treasury Department

Congressional Directives

Pass Through Payments from the University of New Hampshire
Block Grants for Community Mental Health Services

Total Department of Health and Human Sen'ices

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

93.493

93.958

N/A

#PZL0I90

106,250

140,228

,217,879

$  1,217,879

See notes to schedule ofexpenditures offederal awards
15



NAMI NEW HAMPSHIRE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

NOTE 1—BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal
award activity of NAMI New Hampshire under programs of the federal government for the year ended
June 30, 2023. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of
Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Fart 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule
presents only a selected portion of the operations of NAMI New Hampshire, it is not intended to and does
not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of NAMI New Hampshire.

NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of
accounting, which is described in Note 1 to NAMI New Hampshire's financial statements. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein
certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursements.

NOTE 3—INDIRECT COST RATE

NAMI New Hampshire has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost fate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.

note 4—relationship to financial statements

The recognition of expenditures of federal awards has been reported in the NAMI New Hampshire's
financial statements as program services and management and general expenses, as applicable.

I  . • '
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(603) 622-7070 • Pax: (603) 622-1452 • www.vachonclukay.corh

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE

WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors

NAMl New Hampshire

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of NAMl New
Hampshire (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2023 and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report, thereon dated December 28,
2023.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered NAMl New Hampshire's
internal control over financial reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NAMl New Harhpshire's intemal
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of NAMl New Hampshire's
intemal eontrol.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
intemal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's
financial staterrients will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with govemance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did hot identify any
deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether NAMl New Hampshire's financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material
effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the organization's
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the organization's internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

^  ̂ C.

Manchester, New Hampshire

December 28, 2023
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors

NAMI New Hampshire

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited NAMI New Hampshire's compliance with the types of compliance requirements identified
as subject to audit in the.OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each
of NAMI New Hampshire's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. NAMI New
Hampshire's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

in our opinion, NAM! New Hampshire'complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance,
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards
and the Uniforrn Guidance are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of NAMI New Hampshire and to meet oiir other ethical responsibilities,
in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for oUr opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of NAMI New Hampshire's
compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

i

Responsibilities ofManagementfor Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to NAMI New
Hampshire's federal programs.
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on NAM! New Hampshire's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material
noncompliance resulting-from fraud is higher than for that resulting from-error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there, is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the . report on compliance about NAMl New Hampshire's compliance with the
requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

in performing an audit in accordanice with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

•  Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

•  Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or eiror, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding NAMl Nevy Hampshire's compliance with the compliance
requirements referred to above ahd performing such other procedures as wc considered necessary
in the circumstances.

•  Obtain an understanding of NAMl New Hampshire's internal control over compliance relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of NAMl New Hampshire's internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal ,
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over cothpliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely, basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

20



Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
December 28, 2023
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NAMI New Hampshire
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

For the Year Ended June 30, 2023

Section 1—Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP:

internal control over financial reporting:
Material wealcness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncoinpliance material to financial statements noted?

Unmociifieci

yes

yes

yes

X  no

X  none reported

X no

Federal A wards

Internal control over major federal programs:
• Material wealaiess(es) identified?
Significant defieiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major federal programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)?

yes X no
yes X none reported

Unmodified

yes X  no

Identification of major federal program(s);

Assistance Listing Number(s)

93.243

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services - Projects of
Regional and National Significance

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs; $ 750.000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? _X yes no
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Section 11—Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements required to be reported by GAGAS.

Section 111—Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings and questioned costs as defined under 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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NAMI NH

Board of Directors Affiliations

.2023-2024

NAME AFFILIATION

Atkinson, Rev.'Kate St. Paul's Episcopal Church

Breault, William City of Dover Police Department

Brunelle, Barbara Souhegan Coop High School

Cotton, Charlie Retired

Cusano, Karen NFI North

De Voe, Karen Mental Health Ctr of Greater Manchester .

Donovan, Todd Freedom Hill Consulting

ElSayed, Mohamed New Hampshire Hospital, ISU

Gardiner, Arthur Attorney (retired)

Guerin, Cheryl Dartmouth College

Jones, Nathaniel SERESC

Kahn, Jay Retired

Keenan, Joseph NH Licensed Psychologist

LaBonte, Liz Human Resources, Lahey Clinic

LaFrance, Shawn Cheshire Medical

Lusenhop, Will Dept of Social Work, University ofNH

Marsden, Rev. Patty Newmarket Community Church

Moler, Teresa Self-Employed

Palmer, Zachery NH Community Loan Fund

Rabalais, Jennifer Institute on Disability, University of NH

Sublette, Nicole Nicole Sublette Counseling

Urbanik, Deborah CEO, D. Whitney Consulting

White, Jeffrey NH Dept of Corrections



KEY ADMINISTRATIVE PERSONNEL

NH Department of Education

Contractor Name: NAMI New Hampshire

Name of Program: Connect Suicide Prevention Training

iBJJDGET PERIOD: i ; SFY2024

'k. ^ -r-r'kt:
tr/;, Ui " '"i °

NAME

u" n , • ' ■ PERCENT PAID AMqUNT PAID

Jl " 0
JOB TITLE . .. SALARY

FROM THIS -

CONfRACT !
' FFtOM TJritS, t
CONTI^a'CT'

Ann Duckless

Community Educator &

Prevention Specialist $69,500 0%

j

'  $o.od,
Elaine de Mello Director of Suicide Prevention $93,678 0% .;t;^'^$0.00

Suicide Prevention Project . ■ '

Amy Cook , Manager $  84,500 0% $0:00'

Liz Hodgkins Director of Adult Services $85,600 0% .  $0.00.^
TOTAL SALARIES (Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) - $0.00-

: a VcBUAGETPERIGD;^^ SF^Y 2025 . "
r- PERCENT PAID AMOUNT PAID

FROM THIS a FROM THIS j '
JOB. TITLE ' SALARY CONTRACT ■CONTRACT-,.1

Ann Duckless Prevention Specialist $69,500 20% $9,600.00
Elaine de Mello Director of Suicide Prevention $93,678 10% ,  l$4i800';0'0
Amy Cook Manager $  84,500 15% ,^$7:200.00-
Liz Modgkins Director of Adult Services $85,600 1% !' : $480.00'

TOTAL SALARIES [Not to exceed Total/Salary Wages, Line Item 1 of Budget request) .  " $22,080:00
^  1



Susan L. Stearns
Mtntai Health Executive Development Vrt^eitional

QUAUnCATIONS

Solid background in non*
profit development &

idnunitcraDOn

Pfoven tadenhjp ikiDl
ind idvocicy eipeiieoce

Recognized otpen in
dmloptrteot ind gnot

' vrodng

EscelUnt wfirtcn end oni

comrounicstor

Knowledgesble in
prognm development and

eraluabon.

Expecienced working %-ich
bcuda tod volunteen

Abdity CO work well with
divene iadhnduats and

groups

Cectirted mcdiitoc and

▼kora advocate

ProCcssioral
educatot/toincf

Broad tmdenotnding of
abuse, povenj. disability

and fiunOy laues

WORK EXPERIENCE

20l<^ Deputy Dircetor. NAMl New Mampihire, Concord.

DJrectot of Philenthfopy, NANII New Hampshire, Coocofd.2013.2016

2007-2013

200S-2007

2004-2005

2004-2010

DiteetetofDereiopment^QttpVu Nashua Mcnot Health
Center at Commuruty Council, New Hampshire.

Diieaot ofPioposeJ Devetopmeat^ Harbor Hottms. Inc.,
Nashua, New Hampshire

Euccuttre I^erecfoA p^-droc position. Dtos for Succeaa New
Hampshire. Concord.

Trainer, contracted pscc-iime. Guardian Ad Utne Board,
Concord. New Kampshift.

2001-2006 Dimetor, part-time potidon, CdaUison for Family Law dc Mental
Health, P^biliQes Righu Center. Concord. New Hampshire.

2000-2013 C/tM St Marketiag VOn'te/, Indepcndcoi Contxactos.

2000-^4 Grant WrUer/Devetopment Associate, pan-tifiie posidon.
New Hampshire Assoaatiofl foe thc Blind, Concord

1908-2000 Executrre Director, VChole VUUge Family Raouice Center,
Plymouth. NH.

1993-1908 Program Spedaiist, New Hampshire Coalibon Agsintt
Oomcsnc & Sexual Violenee, Concord.

'  J

1988-1993 A dainistratire Ditectpr, Tuk Force Against Domeade 8r
Sexual Violence, Plymouth, New Hampshire

1986-1988 Assistant Ombvdspersoo, Ombuda OfTice, Urdvcnity of
Massacluaetts. Amhctsi

EDUCATION

1986-1987 Graduate work. Ctmiuldngdr Counseling Psychology, School
of Educidon. Uoh'erslty of hfasuchuseto, .\mhers(.

1986 B.A in English. Utaivcrsity of Massachusetts, AmhcrsL



.S. L Scams

Pt^2o(2

PUBUCATIONS

2012 Mcdiicftid Cootcacti Rttsc Queitioaj Galore, C»K9HMmtaf, (with H. Hafea). Aphl 18,
http7/wNwgQftCOTdm<!>nimfXQniAreglt/l>4?0ft/mfdiMid<Qf>tncH.nitg^u«tk>iu^OTe.

2009 JRccJtlaung.Ouf Future: A Ptt/ivfay for Trtidng Co-OccuningMentdHealth ajidSvbttanc^ Use
Disotdcn in SewHafopohiec*$ Addeicentt and YouagAduiu, NaciomI AUcancc on Mcnal JUnns -
New Hsmpshire (pcimtry author), uww.fl*minh.Qff/>iogumentt/NAMTftefhiiTMftyQufFunifg.pdf.

2008 Raising Mattbcw: A Mother ReQects on MedlcsUng Hct Son, NaHtuJti miiUM/^tn^bl/
Communicy Coundl orNuhus, (reprinted in Ctmu Tianj.
v.wgeflgtubhQrg/pdf/Ggf>«;^>i>?(mmMV.?O.V.?tWrXiqpdn

2008 Commtatiiy CcuadJ - Tbe Commuoity*$ hftntalHealth Center, Progreu Edition. Ntshus Tdegnph,
ww.print2^^bcQfp.gQm/news/NMhus/Hed[hsnd£diic»tiQn/200BQ3[H/p28.tsp^d=p2S

2007 Coining b Crotn the Cold: Oeocbg ̂luiiooi to Homelesineis foe People with Diaobtlitici, RiP
Sbnt Ti* LaUd ia DvaHS^ Bartairi, Admaiy, PeBxy. ead PmtHn. (for P. fCelleher),
NPww dfgnh ofp/RapSpriivgQ7 prif ■

2006 Cuideiioea for Parpitr: PHnning foeAppropriate Care foryour Children, Coalition for f-intdy Law &
MentaKHeiJch.

2005 Tbe Stntggle for Justice: Sc^'og Legal Equity for Pareott wiih Mental lUsess, R';^X8rrir TbrLataf
ia DiukiSr; R/ttani, Admay, Pa/hj, aadPnani?, VI mtitr Isjue, ̂^^v^v■drcnh■Qfg/np^hgec\v■inte^OS■pdf■

2003 5or Praetiee Standards for Adequate Assessment of Parenting Competency, Coalition for P'tcnily
Law 8c Mental Health, unin».dtenh.orY/P>renaL\mMmgnc.pdf.

2003 Pointers for Legal Ptofessicnais Regarding Family Law Issues and Parents with PbyaieaJ or Mental
' lUneu,Coalition foe Family Law 8e Menial Heiiih, wAwy.drgnh.Qff/ParenulPointert.pdr. \

1998 StaDdog: .A guide for victims. New Hampshire Coalirion Against Domestic 8e Sexual Violence.

1997 Sexual Assiuli, A LtgdHeadimkfsr tTacrr# is Stn Hasiptim, New Hampshixe Commission on the Status
of VC'omcn, ww\v.unh.gdu/wpfT>gn«.eemmi«iftn/tgpl4isn<ft>ooW/ifausl.Miauli.hrml,

1994 Mediation assd Domestic Violence: Conaidetations foe Mediaton arid Banered Women, A'cv
Hamp/birr BarJeansl, Vol. 3 S, No. 2, p. 32, June.

RECEhTT PROFESSIONAL ACnVITIES

Member, Goveraot*s Commistioa oa Disability, appointed ^ New Hampshire Gmxmor Hssuo (since 2016).
Member, Beard ofTrustees, Tit-ior Cooununity, Laeonis (tiriee 20(6).

Member, Jasdee lovohtd Vetcraos TeskFotee, New Hampshire (since 20(3).
FaeiJitator, CoaHdoo oa Meota!Health SkJustice, HiUsbocovgh Counry (since 2009).

Member A Past Ptesideat, Board o/Dirtetort, Genesis Behavioral Health, Laconta (2007.20(6).

Member, CriminalJusike/MeotalHeabh WotUTeam,,
Cornmisstoo lo Develop s Comprchensrve Scaic htental Health Pbn, Concord (2007.2008).

Member, Task Poret on FamilyLaw, appoeced by New Htmpshite Cosemor Shaheeo (2002.2004).



Liz PROFILE

Hodgkins
Adult Program

Director

Dedicated, mission-driven program and volunteer manager who
effectively engages community members, staff, and volunteer
leaders. Adept at assessing community needs and matching with
organization goals to meet grant and strategic plan deliverables.
Specializes In maintaining strong and respectful relationships with
stakeholders.

WORK EXPERIENCE

EDUCATION

Bachelor of Science/ Psychology
Keene State College

199Z-1996

Certified Volunteer Administrator

April 2023 . •

EXPERTISE

Event Planning

. Project Management

Volunteer Administration

Problem-Solving

Leadership

Critical Thinking .

Teamwork

Adult Program Director
NAMI NH I Concord, NH | 2022 - Current
Oversee administration of volunteers throughout the organization,
working across teams to create agency wide volunteer practices. Manage
NAMI signature programs, grants, and grassroots volunteer operations.
•  Utilizing volunteer administration best practices to work towards

agency strategic plan goals.
•  Closing workforce and organizational capacity challenges and

gaps by strategically recruiting, training, and engaging skilled ■
volunteers.

Education and Support Program Coordinator
. NAMI NH I Concord, NH | 2014 - 2022

Coordinate and oversee state-wide events and programs that are
facilitated by trained volunteers. Utilizing the strategic plan as a guide,
seeking opportunities to grow our community connections and access to
programming that benefits Granite Staters affected by mental Illness and
suicide.

•  Manage staff working on program deliverables, providing timely
and effective feedback on their performance.

•  Maintain relationships with valuable organization volunteers,
offering opportunities to be part of our mission driven
programming.

•  Recruit screen, and train new volunteers and connect them with

■ mentors In their community. Organize and facilitate quarterly
meetings to maintain their connection to the organization.

•  Plan, coordinate, and execute the NAMI NH Annual Conference.

Training and Event Coordinator
Independent Contractor I Concord, NH I 2008-2012

Facilitated group process to plan and Implement conference and event
programs. Maintained strict budget and work guidelines for
competehcy-based outcomes. Researched and contracted with
nationally recognized training experts. Connected and communicated
with staff to increase their buy In to programming changes.

Program Director
NFI North | Concord, NH | 2002-2006

Planned and Implemented trainings and conference events for statewide
child welfare staff according to strict contract guidelines. Oversight of
contract budget. Revised outdated child welfare training, Implementing
nationally recognized child welfare new employee training.



Elaine de Mcllo

EDUCATION:

University of Connecticut, Concord, NH; MSW (1985) ■
Lehman College, Bronx, NY: MS in Therapeutic Recreation (1980)
Ramapo College, MahwahjNJ: BS in Psychology

CERTIFICATIONS/LICENSES:

LCSW, State ofNH
Guidance Counselor, State of NH
School Social Woricer, State of NH

EXPERIENCE:

1999-Present National Alliance on MentallllnessNH, Concord, NH
Supervisor of Training and Prevention Services
- Develop and implement community protocols and training for suicide prevention, intervention and

postvention leading to recognition as a National Best Practice progi'am.
- Provide consultation and training on a national basis on suicide.prevention and postvention
- Co-chair of Youth Suicide Prevention Assembly (statewide coalition in NH): review cases of

suicide deaths, recommend practices and resources to statewide and regional partners, coordinate
annual suicide, prevention conference

- Develop and implement support and educational services for children and adults provided through
NAMINH .

- Coordinate & present s.tatewide educational programs on mental illness and suicide prevention for
schools, colleges, businesses, law enforcement personnel, health services providers, and the
general public.

- Develop and lead courses for specialized provider organizations including Division of Children,
Youth and Families (DCYF), PSTC (Police Standards and Training Council) and NH National
Guard.

~ Develop, review, and disseminate educational material about mental health and mental illness for
target audiences around the state.

- Develop, revise and implement family,education programs about mental illness.
- Maintain contact with professionals, affiliates and consumer groups to provide consultation,

technical support, educational material and resources.

2004 - Present Plymouth State University, Plymouth, NH
Adjunct Faculty, Health Education & Social Work
- Teach Mental Health courses to Health Education and Social Work majors

2001 - Present Genesis Behavioral Health, Laconia, NH and Riverbend
Community Mental Health Center, Concord, NH .

-Child Impact Teacher
- Conduct Child Impact classes required by court for parents involved in divorce or custody cases.

2002 - Present Genesis Behavioral Health, Laconia, NH
Emergency Services Clinician & QI Consultant



Resume-Elaine dcMello.(cont'd)

- Provide clinical emergency seivice response to residents of Belknap and Southern Graftbn
Counties

- Sei*ve on statewide behavioral health disaster response team
- Conduct complaint investigations and assist with audits and quality improvement processes such

as development of policies and procedures

1999 - 2001 Division of Behavioral Health, Concord, NH
Consultant

- Serve as consultant to conduct audits on clinical records in mental health centers ai'ound New

Hampshire.

1992 - 2000 Jennie D. Blake Elementary School, Hill, NH
Guidance Counselor (9/92-6/00)

1981-1999 Genesis the Counseling Group, Lacohia, NH

1981 - 1999 Quality Improvement Director (9/96-7/99)
Commimity Support Program Director (9/86-2/97)
Vocational SerWces Coordinator (6/83-9/86)
Clinician/Therapist (9/81-6/83)

1978 - 1981 Rockland Psychiatric Center, Orangeburg, NY
Assistant Director, Mount Vernon Workshop (8/79-8/81)
Thcrnpy/Rccrcation Assistant (8/78-8/79)

Professional Memberships:
- National Alliance on Mental Illness (1988-Presen't)

Awards:

- New Hampshire Rehabilitation Association: Practitioner oftheYear(1985)
- - New Hampshire Alliance for the Mentally 111: Administrator of the Year (1993)
- New Hampshire Alliance for the Mentally III: Professional of the Year (1998)

Trainer for:

- NH Police Standards Council: Mental Health Crisis Response, Suicide Prevention and Postvehtion
- Connect Suicide Prevention and Postvention, all disciplines
- AMSR: Assessing and Managing Suicide Risk (AMSR) for clinical and college settings



Ann Duckless, MA

EXPERIENCE:

National Alliance on Mental Illness NH, Concord, NH 01/06 - Present
Community Educator and Prevention Specialist .
Serve as a team member with the Connect Suicide Prevention Project. Work coUaboratively with
communities in providing suicide prevention training to community members across disciplines to parents
and high school youth and to young adults ages 18-24. Teach postvention trainings to first responders,
school crisis response teams, funeral directors and clergy. Insure sustaihability through Train-the-Trainer
model and offer technical assistance throughout the implementation process.

New Hampshire Teen Institute, Concord, NH 10^2 -12/05
Program Director
Extensive program coordination and facilitation of drug/alcohol abuse prevention with statewide
non-profit organization. NH SADD State Coordinator for 30 state chapters. Responsible for the
management of all youth and adult volunteer staff training. Provide programs to promote leadership and
advocacy skills for 2,000 middle and high school youth.

Franklin Pierce College, Concord, NH 1997 - 2005
Adjunct Faculty
College level teaching for societal issues, addictions, human services and counseling. Class average of 15
students.

HoIIis/Brookline NH Schools, SAU #41 10/90 - 10/02
Student Assistance Program Coordinator
Developed in-house SAP for elementary, middle and high schools for 2,500 students, K-12. Group and
individual work highlighted prevention and early intervention with high-risk youth. Consultant to parents
and school staff. Assessed and evaluated substance abuse, family change, ̂ d emotional issues for outside
referrals or in-house supports. Drug/alcohol awareness education, grades 1-9.

CLINICAL EXPERIENCE:

Monica Derr & Associates, Amherst, NH 9/91-12/93
Marriage/Family Therapist Substance Abuse Counselor
Responsible for handling an average caseload of 10 clients. Clients were couples, families and individuals
in early recovery from substance/process addictions and adolescent issues.

(

Family Therapy Institute, Bedford, NH 9/89-9/91
Marriage/Family Therapist Substance Abuse Specialist
Responsible for an average caseload of 25 clients utilizing a systems approach. Cases inyolved
sexual/physical abuse and domestic violence issues. Experienced in community/professional
presentations.

Brooksidc Hospital, Nashua, NH 9/88 - 6/89
Chemical Dependency Counselor
Worked with adolescents in individual and group sessions; conducted diagnostic evaluations and CD
assessments for purposes of intake and screening; and facilitated weekly parents' education group.

EDUCATION:

Antioch/New England Graduate School, Keene, NH 1990-
Master of Arts in Counseling Psychology with dual concentrations in
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Substance Abuse and in Marriage and Family Therapy

University of Vermont, Burlington, VT 1982
Bachelor of Arts in Psychology

SPECIALTY AREAS:

Cultural Effectiveness Trainer 1996

Anti-Defamatdon League, Boston, MA

Adjunct Faculty for Foster/Adoptive Parents 2002 - Present
Granite State College, Concord, NH

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS:

New Hampshire Prevention Certification member 2006

HONORS:

Excellence in Teaching Award iYx^r\\i\\n^\<ixcQCo\\ii%t 2004



Amy M. Cook
ICnUCATION, CKUTIFICATICS & ClOCDKNTIALS

SOUTI-IERN NEW HAMPSHIRE UNIVERSITY - Manchester, NH ■ Master of Business Administration, 2024
UNIVERSITY OF HAMPSHIRE-Durham, NH ■ Bachelor of Arts in Sociology and Psychology, 1998^

Performance Measurement Techniques, August 2023
Inbound Marketing credential, May 2023
Data Analytics Core Concepts Certificate, Feb 2023
Applying Data Analytics to Business Performance, Feb 2023

Change Management, July 2023
Measuring Business Performance, Feb 2023
MS Power BI credential, March 2022
Strategic Analysis certificate', October 2022

: FROFHSSIONAI. KXI'ICUIENCK

Dec 2022-presentNATIONAL ALLIANCE ON MENTAL ILLNESS-NH—Concord, NH

Suidde Prevention Project Manager
Lead end-to-end project management for a federally funded project to increase accessibility of NAMI NH-owned trainings and
materials to diverse populations including Spanish-speaking, LGBTQIA+, military A'eterans, and Deaf and Hard of Hearing
communities.

•  Qversee management of subcontractors—identify qualified vendors, develop scope of service, monitor work progress, and
review invoices.

■  Provide and implement branding recommendations for proprietary training curriculum and materials,
■  Facilitate change management process to implement new branding and procedures for sustainability of program,
"  Ensure successful completion within established timelines and objectives.
"  Facilitate training workshops related to suicide prevention and mental health wellness for diverse audiences and settings.

New Hnmpshire Suicide Prevention Council—Concord, NH June 2022 - present *

Chair

Serve as elected Chair of the Council and lead efforts to oversee Implementation of the state's suicide prevention plan. Legislatively
established, the Council ensures continued effectiveness of the plan by evaluating implementing implementation, and recommending
program changes, initiatives, funding opportunities, and new priorities to update the plan.
■  Lead stafutory-niembers, committee chairs, and stakeholders in the implementation of the state's suicide prevention plan.
•  Facilitate monthly meetings.
■  Monitor budget arid expenditures.
•  Review contracts and invoices.

■  Provide.professional development for members as it relates to the needs of the Council and the plan.
■  Conduct public speaking engagements and submit written testimony tothe NH Legislature on behalf of the Council.

SAMHSA/VA SMVF TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE CENTER—Albany, NY July 2019 - present

Subject Matter Expert
Provide consultations and presentations to teams in other states and U.S. Territories designing sU^tegic initiatives to prevent suicide
among Service Members, Veterans, and their families.

DIVISION OF COMMUNITY BASED MILITARY PROGRAMS, DEFT OF MILITARY ̂ FAIRS &

VETERANS SERVICES—Concord, NH October 2018 - Dec 2022
Director

Led comprehensive development, direction, and operations of the Division as a member of the senior leadership team of the
Department. Key responsibilities included:
• Managing the Division budget and overseeing administrative aspects of federal and state" grants.
" Cultivating partnerships with diverse stakeholders, including local, state, federal, ̂ d military entities.
■ Assessing program needs and performance, striving for sustainable system and policy changes to benefit the Veteran population.
• Crafting competitive responses to Requests for Proposals, securing federal or legislative funding.
■ Compiling and analyzing statistics and metrics to evaluate the e^ectiveness of strategic initiatives and outreach projects.
" Conducting speaking engagements and training sessions for both local and national audiences.
• Developing a communication plan for the Division that included effective outreach and engagement strategies.
■' Researching, designing, and developing new programs to meet the evolving needs of the NH National Guard, Department of

Military Affairs, and the Veteran community.



Amy M. Cook, continued

STRAFFORD LEARNING CENTER—Somersworth, NH 2016-2018

Pre-Employment Transition Services Program Coordinator
Led the end-to-end project management of a Workforce Innovation and Opportunities Act (WIOA) program in Rockingham &
Straffbrd Counties for at-risk high school youth seeking career opportunities. Key achievements included:
"  Establishing and nurtured regional & statewide partnerships, cultivating a network of 145+ professionals.
■  Orchestrating a detailed, complex project timeline to ensure the timely completion of tasks.
•  Acting as a liaison between NH Vocational Rehabilitation and regional partners.
■  Assessing and identifying consumer needs, particularly within under-served populations.
"  Designing targeted programming and services to address identified needs.
•  Coordinating logistics for project activities, workshops, events, and conferences.
■  Collaborating with community agencies to enhance accessibility, strengthen services, and provide long-term support.
•  Leading outreach and engagement to customer segment using marketing strategies.
■  Generating reports showcasing the integrity of grant-funded services and ensured federal regulatory compliance.
■ • Monitoring program objectives and analyzed data to refine service delivery strategies.

COMMUNITY PARTNERS—Dover, NH 2002 - 2016
Program Manager
Accumulated 14 years of progressive experience transitioning through roles as Adult Services Case Manager, Family Support Service
Coordinator, Program Supervisor, and Program Manager. As Program Manager, directed end-to-end operations of two major service
programs, overseeing planning, execution, and strategic initiatives. Principal contributions involved:

Initiating and leading planning processes for the successful launch of two new programs.
Performing comprehensive supervisory duties, including hiring, training, directing, evaluating, and disciplining staffr
Reviewing service agreements and budgets, ensuring optimal resource allocation for cost-effectiveness.
Conducting service coordination for individuals with complex support needs.
Leading marketing, outreach, and client engagement efforts.
Championing revenue maximization through effective coordination with federal, state, and local agencies.
Actively contributing to senior leadership initiatives, including strategic planning and goal setting.
Designing and delivering impactful training sessions for various audiences."
Participating in state committees to evaluate and enhance systems of care.
Conducting meticulous quality review assessments of programs and services.
Analyzing data and program outcomes, driving strategic changes in service delivery for continuous improvement.

CUUUENT FROI'ESSIONALMEMIJERSIIirS

NH Suicide Prevention Council, Chair
NH Suicide Prevention Council Military & Veterans Committee, Co-Chair
Govcmor's Commission on Alcohol & Other Drugs, Statutory Member
NH Military Leadership Team, Statutory Member
NH Drug Overdose Fatality Review Commission, Statutory Member
NH Governor's Challenge to Prevent Suicide among Service Members, Veterans & their Families, Governor-appointed Team Lead

PAST RELICVAN'I MEMBr.RSHIPS

Legislative Commission on PTSD & TBI, Voting Member .
Inter-agency Taskforce on Traumatic Brain Injury (TBI), Department Representative
State Coordinating Council on Transportation, Department Representative
Justice Involved Veterans Task Force, Voting'Member
NH Military. Interstate Compact Commission, Governor-appointed Voting Member
NH Alliance for Healthy Aging, Steering Committee Memter
Statewide Steering Committee for Ending Veteran Homelessness


